
Licensing and 
Health and Safety 

Enforcement 
Committee 

Agenda 

 
1 

 

TUESDAY 16 MARCH 2021 AT 7.30 PM 
 

The Forum 
 
The Councillors listed below are requested to attend the above meeting, on the day and at the time 
and place stated, to consider the business set out in this agenda. 
 
 
Membership 
 

Councillor Allen 
Councillor Mrs Bassadone 
Councillor Bhinder (Vice-Chairman) 
Councillor P Hearn (Chairman) 
Councillor Imarni 
Councillor Johnson 
 

Councillor Link 
Councillor Peter 
Councillor Pringle 
Councillor Rogers 
Councillor R Sutton 
Councillor Woolner 
 

 
 
Substitute Members: 
Councillors  
 
 
 
For further information, please contact Corporate and Democratic Support or 01442 228209 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
1. MINUTES   
 
 To approve the minutes from the last meeting. 

 
2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 
 To receive any apologies for absence 

 
3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
 To receive any declarations of interest. 

 
4. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION   

 
5. PAVEMENT LICENSING REPORT  (Pages 3 - 9) 

 

Public Document Pack



 
2 

 

 
 



 
 

Report for: Licensing, Health & Safety and 
Enforcement Committee  

Date of meeting:  16 March 2021 

Part: 1 

If Part II, reason:  

 

 
Title of report: 

 
Pavement Licences and Licensing for Pubs and  
Restaurants 
 

Contact: 
 
Nathan March – Licensing Team Leader, Corporate and 
Contracted Services 
 

Purpose of report: 1.    To update the Committee on legislation giving powers 
requiring the Council to determine Pavement Licences, 
following advice from The Ministry of Housing, 
Communities and Local Government. 

2. To agree the continuation of delegations required for the 
determination and enforcement of licences, the licence 
duration and fees to be charged. 

Recommendations That the Committee: 

 

1. Agree that fees of £100 for pavement licensing will remain 
for a further year, until 30 September 2022, should the 
issue of pavement licences remain with the Council for 
that time. 

2. Agree that the duration of licences issued after 30th 
September 2021, will be up to 12 months, with all of those 
licences remaining until 30th September 2022. 

3. Confirm that the delegations for the responsibility for 
granting, refusal and revocation of licences, including 
amending conditions, remain with the Assistant Director – 
Corporate and Contracted Services and the Group 
Manager, Legal and Corporate Services. For the duration 
of the powers being with the Council. 

 

Corporate 
objectives: 

 A clean, safe and enjoyable environment 
 

 Building strong and vibrant communities 

AGENDA ITEM:   
 

SUMMARY 

Page 3

Agenda Item 5



 

 Ensuring economic growth and prosperity 
 

 Delivering an efficient and modern council 
 

Implications: 
 
 
 
 
‘Value for money’ 
implications 

Financial 
 
Maximum fee permitted is £100, which will not cover the cost 
of the process for determining each licence, however the work 
will be covered within existing staff resources. The most 
appropriate option is to set the licences at the highest level, 
and set the duration for the longest period permitted, to save 
repeating the process. 
 
Value for money 
 
Charging the maximum fee, and issuing for the longest 
duration available is best value for money approach.  
 

Risk implications Licences are deemed to be granted if not approved or refused 
within the 14 days period, failure to maintain the existing 
process, or seeking to prevent such licences being issued or 
controlled by condition could lead to reputational damage to 
the Council and allow premises to operate without sufficient 
controls in place.   

 

Community Impact 
Assessment 

A Community Impact Assessment was initially carried out 30 
June 2020 and considered at the time that the legislation first 
came into effect.  

 

Health and safety 
Implications 

Damage to health of local residents if granting licences leads 
to significant nuisance that is not then dealt with effectively 

Risk to safety of patrons and other highway users if highway is 
obstructed increasing risk of incident as a result of other 
highway users. 

There is a power to revoke which safeguards against these 
risks. 

Consultees: N/A 

Background 
papers: 

Business and Planning Act 2020 

NEXSTART Business and Planning Bill 2019-21 Pavement 
Licences 

Letter from MHCLG – Supporting the reopening of outdoor 
hospitality – 5 March 2021 (attached) 

 

Page 4



Glossary of 
acronyms and any 
other abbreviations 
used in this report: 

 

 
 
1. Introduction:  
 
1.1. The Business and Planning Act 2020 obtained Royal Assent on 22 July 2020. 

The Act introduced a number of powers and requirements on local authorities 
that affect how they deal with a variety of issues, with the aim of supporting local 
businesses and helping economic recovery as the restrictions put in place by 
Government continue to be eased.  
 

1.2. These powers are temporary, and originally remaining in place until 30 
September 2021, but we have now been advised that it is likely that the powers 
will remain in situ until 30 September 2022, subject to parliamentary approval. 
The letter from the MHCLG attached in Appendix 1 contains further details.  

 
1.3. The two most relevant sections of the Act are:  
 

 The change in approach to outdoor furniture provision for relevant 
businesses (as defined in the Act) to enable them to increase their 
trading space ‘pavement licences’.  
 

 Relaxation of off sales of alcohol for licensed premises  
 
1.4. As a result of the legislation, pavement licences can currently be dealt with by 

district councils, as an alternative to county councils, which have responsibility 
for Highways matters in normal circumstances. As a result of the likely extension 
of this power to 30 September 2022, the Council needs to ensure that everything 
is in place in order to allow such applications to continue to be made, consulted 
upon and determined within a short timescale. 

 
2. Pavement licensing requirements  
 
2.1. The Act requires that district councils will deal with any food and drink related 

pavement licence applications submitted to them, and also introduces other 
important changes to the way that these are dealt with.  

 
2.2. The key requirements of pavement licensing are as follows:  
 

 Any business selling and/or serving food or drink may apply for a pavement 
licence to have tables and chairs and other street furniture such as patio 
heaters placed on the highway adjacent to their premises for the benefit of 
their customers – if the land is not a highway and is privately owned land 
separate consent of the landowner is required. 
 

 Licences will be considered granted unless the Council rejects them within a 
set statutory period. 

   

Page 5



 The Council has 14 days to determine an application, with half of that forming 
a public consultation, and the other half being the time permitted for the 
consultations received to be considered and a decision made. 

 

 A maximum fee of £100 can be charged for applications. 
 

 Currently, all licences issued will last until 30th September 2021, the original 
date that the legislation would be in effect to. 

 
2.3. Since the pavement licensing provisions came to the Council, only one licence 

has been applied for and this was granted without any issues. It is possible that 
there may start to increase as the weather improves and covid related 
restrictions are relaxed. 

 
3. Enforcement  
 
3.1. The Council has enforcement powers for use to rectify licence related problems 

including the power to revoke if necessary. The Council will continue to work with 
the Highways department at Hertfordshire County Council, where they continue 
to be responsible for other aspects of enforcement such as businesses who fail 
to obtain a licence when required.  

 
4. Licensing Act 2003 relaxation to off-sales of alcohol 
 
4.1. In addition to the extension of the pavement licensing powers described above 

the extension of the legislation until 30 September 2022 is also likely to mean 
that off-sales of alcohol will continue to be unregulated in certain circumstances.   
 

4.2. Licensed premises such as pubs and restaurants may have licences that allow 
only for provision of alcohol to be consumed on the premises (known as an on-
licence), or they can also have an off-licence facility included too, which allows 
them to sell alcohol for consumption away from the premises.  

 
4.3. Often, where an establishment such as a pub has an off-licence, there may be 

conditions attached such as a requirement for the drink to be sold in sealed 
containers if it is being sold to be taken away from the premises. There is no 
definition of what constitutes a ‘sealed container’, but the aim of such condition is 
to prevent alcohol being decanted into a wine glass, pint glass or similar 
glassware for immediate consumption. 

 
4.4. As part of the Business and Planning Act 2020, all premises with on-licences 

were automatically permitted to sell alcohol to be taken away as if they have a 
licence permitting off-sales, and any restrictive conditions normally in place will 
also cease to have effect. 

 
4.5. These relaxations apply to all the relevant licensed premises unless they have 

had a ‘disqualifying event’ in the preceding 3 years of this section of the act 
coming into force, and this is not the case for any premises in Dacorum. 

 
4.6. Disqualifying events are defined in the Bill as premises where:  
 

 the relevant licensing authority refused to grant a premises licence in respect 
of the licensed premises authorising off-sales,  
 

Page 6



 the relevant licensing authority refused to vary the premises licence so as to 
authorise off-sales, or  

 

 the premises licence was varied or modified so as to exclude off-sales from 
the scope of the licence. 

 
4.7. This means that it is possible that customers may buy alcohol from any premises 

and leave the premises, and take the alcohol anywhere they wish to drink it. This 
includes glassware, which could create various public safety concerns. In most 
cases it is unlikely that this will be an issue as the businesses will not want to 
lose their glassware, but those businesses with green spaces adjacent to their 
premises may be willing for customers to take glassware further away than 
would usually be permitted under their licence. If such issues start to arise, 
officers will look to resolve them by working with the relevant premises, and 
could seek to review the licence to add controls through conditions if necessary.  

 
4.8. There are powers being introduced to review these relaxations where issues 

arise, but this will be on a case by case basis and will have to be considered by 
a sub-committee. In line with the more regular Licensing Act reviews, issues 
arising would generally have to be occurring in the vicinity of the premises to 
justify any restrictions being applied/reapplied to the relevant licensed premises.   

 
 
5. Conclusions:    
 
5.1. Pavement Licences 
 

The Council must have a process in place in order to continue to accept and 
determine applications for pavement licences, and to deal with any issues arising 
with licensees. The application fee and duration for licences issued needs to be 
reviewed, and appropriate delegations need to remain in place so that the 
Council can continue to deliver this function until 30 September 2022.    

 
5.2. Relaxations for licensed premises 
 

Restrictions to off-sales of alcohol from licensed premises pubs are likely to 
continue to be suspended until 30 September 2022. The Council has no power 
to prevent this, but has powers to review premises licences where evidence of 
issues arise, although this is likely to only be the case where the issues occur 
within the vicinity of the premises.   

 
6. Recommendations:  
 
6.1. Members are asked to consider the recommendations at the start of the report, 

in order that application fees are maintained and duration of these licences, and 
so that officers may remain delegated with the relevant powers to ensure that 
applications can be determined, and enforcement action taken against licensees 
when necessary. 

 
 

Page 7



   

 Rt Hon Robert Jenrick MP   
Secretary of State for Housing, Communities & Local 
Government  

 
Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local 
Government   
Fry Building    
2 Marsham Street    
London    
SW1P 4DF   

   Tel: 0303 444 3450   
Email: robert.jenrick@communities.gov.uk   
   
www.gov.uk/mhclg   
   

5 March 2021   
    

Dear Leader,  

Supporting the reopening of outdoor hospitality  

On 22 February the Prime Minister published a roadmap for easing the lockdown restrictions and set out that 

in step two, which will be no earlier than 12 April, hospitality venues will be allowed to serve people outdoors.  

I am writing to you today to highlight the measures in place to support the safe re-opening of hospitality 

businesses and to urge you to do everything possible to help these businesses reopen safely and prosper 

again.  

 

All of us in Government are looking forward to seeing pubs, cafes and restaurants open again, and, as 

Communities Secretary, I’m determined that we don’t let red tape to get in the way of a great British summer.  

Last summer we introduced several measures to support hospitality businesses to reopen safely, enabling 

business across the country to continue to serve their local communities. The planning changes we put in 

place last year have been a lifeline to many businesses and they’re here to stay for the summer of 2021.  

 

To that end, I am pleased to announce that we will be extending pavement licences for a further 12 months, 

making it easier and cheaper for pubs, restaurants and cafes to continue to make al fresco dining a reality 

with outside seating, tables and street stalls to serve food and drinks. We are also continuing to support local 

communities hold popular outdoor events like summer fairs, car-boot sales, and markets, without the need 

for planning permission.  

 

The automatic right to provide takeaways and do deliveries we created at the start of the pandemic is going 

to continue, as will the right for pubs to have marquees and awnings without planning permission for up to 

two months.  

 

To remind you of the freedoms we have put in place, I have set out all of the measures that we introduced 

below: 

 

Al fresco dining 

 

We introduced a simplified route for pubs, restaurants and cafes to obtain a temporary pavement licence to 

place furniture including outdoor tables and seating on the highway, allowing them to increase their outdoor 

capacity quickly and at a low cost. We introduced these pavement licence provisions on 22 July 2020 in the 

Business and Planning Act 2020. They include a capped application fee of £100 and a 10-working day 

consultation and determination period.  

 

We have made clear in the pavement licence guidance that we expect local authorities to grant licences for 

12 months or more unless there are good reasons not to, such as plans for future changes in use of road Page 8

http://www.gov.uk/mhclg


space. Therefore, unless there are very good reasons, we would expect licences granted under these 

provisions to continue to apply into this summer so that businesses do not have to reapply or be charged a 

further application fee when they are able to re-open to serve customers outdoors. These temporary 

provisions are currently due to expire on 30 September 2021, but to give further certainty to businesses I will 

be introducing secondary legislation to extend these provisions for a further 12 months, subject to 

Parliamentary approval. 

 

Given the continuing importance of the outdoors to reduce transmission of the virus, I strongly encourage 

you to plan for outdoor dining and make all necessary changes to local high streets, squares and the public 

realm so this is as convenient as possible for businesses and members of the public. 

 

Freedom to use land for community events and outdoor hospitality 

 

Last year we provided greater flexibility for businesses to hold outdoor events such as summer fairs or 

motorsports on land without the need for a planning application, while events such as car-boot sales, or 

people or businesses such as pubs wishing to set up marquees will also be exempt. We have increased the 

number of days allowed for such temporary events from 28 to 56, and in November extended this provision 

until 31 December 2021. 

 

Outdoor markets 

 

We have also introduced a new temporary right, extended to March 2022, that allows local authorities, either 

by themselves or by others on their behalf, to use land to hold a market without having to apply for planning 

permission. 

Takeaways 

 

Finally, we also introduced measures to support restaurants, drinking establishments such as pubs and cafes 

to serve takeaway food when they were otherwise closed due to coronavirus restrictions. These measures 

will continue to apply until March 2022. 

We introduced these changes to provide much needed support to hard-hit hospitality businesses. It is vital 

that local authorities use these measures in a pragmatic way to help support the high street, businesses and 

jobs, once restrictions allow them to do so. 

 

Thank you for all you have done in your local community to help businesses prepare for a safe reopening. 

As we emerge from this incredibly challenging period – let’s not let bureaucracy get in the way of a great 

British summer for the hospitality industry.  

 

 

 
 

RT HON ROBERT JENRICK MP 

Page 9


	Agenda
	5 Pavement Licensing Report
	Appendix 1 Letter from MHCLG - Support for outdoor hospitality


